SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (SAWDB)
MEETING
May 13, 2025
9:00 AM
Somerset Country Chub, Somerset PA

AGENDA
TOPIC
NAME

Welcome, Introductions and Call te Order Cory Sisto, SAWDB Chair
Approval of Minutes from February 11, 2025* Cory Sisto
Executive Committee Actions®

e March 11, 2025

o April 8, 2025

¢ Staff Report
Director’s Report Jennifer Sklodowski, Director

* Red/Green Report

s Review of Budget and Expenditures

» Additional Service Delivery Awards®

¢ Method of TANF Funding*

e Rescind Approval of TABE Waiver Policy*

e TFinal ITA Policy May 2025%
PY 25 Draft Budget® (Handout) Jennifer Sklodowski and Cory Sisto
Young Adult Council Report Sharon Clapper, YAC Chair
Election of SAWDB Executive Committee (Handout) Jennifer Sklodowski
Commonwealth Update Keith Baker, Asst, Regional Director

BWPO
One-Stop Operator Update Bradley Burger, OSO Lead
Representative

Other Business SAWDB Members
Public Comment Audience
Adjournment* Cory Sisto

*Requires Formal Action




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Quarterly Meeting

February 11, 2025
Held via Zoom Meeting Platform

MEETING MINUTES

Members in Attendance

Bob Kutz BBCLC

Brock Kull Manpower

Cory Sisto IEC

Craig Schield OVR

Dave Carey AFSCME Council 83
David Grimaldi JARI

Josh Hauser V(I

Keith Baker BWPO

Pat McCann Lockheed Martin

Ron Aldom Somerset County Chamber
Sharon Clapper Clapper’s Industries

Tina Swineford AASD

Wade Baumgartner Regional Council of Carpenters 423
Wendy Melius CCA

Non-Members in Attendance

April Dolgas Rapid Response

Barb Covert E&T

Brad Burger Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies
Debbie Ankney Tableland Services

Gwenn Fisher PA CareerLink® Blair/Bedford

Jeff Schlick BWPOQO Rapid Response

Jonathan Juhas ucC

Judy Lutz E&T

Judyann Ehrenfeld BWPO CareerLink® Cambria County
Sarah Helman Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies
Jennifer Sklodowski SAP&DC

Tim Baranik SAP&DC

Jim Walker SAP&DC

Jill Reigh SAP&DC

Carrie Fisher SAP&DC

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Cory Sisto called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board
(SAWDB) to order at 9:00 a.m. and welcomed those in attendance.




APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM NOVEMBER 12, 2024 MEETING
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the November 12, 2024, SAWDB
meeting. There were no other questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

The Executive Commitiee Actions from the December 10, 2024, and the January 14, 2025,
meetings were included in the packet.

Ms. Sharon Clapper entered a motion fo approve the November 12, 2024 SAWDB meeting minutes,
and The Executive Committee Actions from the December 10, 2024 and the January 14, 2025, Mr.
Brock Kull seconded the motion. The motion was carried.

SPECIAL INTRODUCTIONS

Mr. Cory Sisto welcomed and introduced the newest members of the Workforce Board. Mr. Sisto
asked the members to introduce themselves and give background.

Mr. Josh Hauser of Veteran Community Initiatives which is a nonprofit based out of Johnstown but
covers the same 14 counties that the Altoona VA Medical Center. The organization reaches out to
veterans to help them enroll in VA Medical Centers or Veteran Benefits administration. Only about
33% of the veterans in PA are enrolled. VCI holds outreach events to help Veterans what is available,
how to complete paperwork, how to sign up, and how their previous employment and their military
occupational specialty can benefit the veterans on how to get back into civilian life.

Mr, David Grimaldi Director of Workforce Development of JARI which focuses on helping with
employment. Last week there were 8 graduates going into the housing authority units in Johnstown
to get people training and employment opportunities and work readiness skills to get people into the
workforce. There are various grants that cover training and employment.

Mr, Pat McCann Human Resource Business Partner of Lockheed Martin in Johnstown which
fabricates components for F-35 Lightning II which is a 5" generation fighter and is the preferred
fighter at NATO, the F16 Fighting Falcon which is a 4™ generation fighter and for the C-130 Hercules
which has orders going out until the year 2030,

REVIEW OF BUDGET

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski welcomed and thanked the new members. Ms. Sklodowski spoke of the
budget and provided an overview that highlights the financial stability with the Workforce
Development Board and the continued commitment to responsible fiscal management. The financial
position remains strong. The Board continues to operate with the funding stream while ensuring the
keywork force initiative receive the necessary support while remaining mindful of potential shifts in
funding, resources and economic positions that may impact the future allocations. As stewards of




these resources the continuation of monitoring financial trends and making necessary adjustments to
uphold the boards mission while maximizing the impact within the Southern Alleghenies Region.
Ms, Sklodowski shared her appreciation for the board’s ongoing support and oversight in ensuring
financial responsibility while continuing to drive workforce solutions and events in our region.
There is a higher than usual balance in the reserve and within the next couple of weeks she will be
conducting a thorough review of the financials to ensure that the funds are effectively utilized. Ms.
Sklodowski will review the budget and will be asking the board at a later date to move funds from
the reserve into different programs.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Red/Green Report

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski referred to page one of the Red/Green Report which reflects 6 months of
expenditures with invoices due on the 12 of every month. This report reflects the month of
January. The first page shows Title T expenditures as they are measured against the 80%
expenditure requirements. As a region providers are at 55% of the goal spent which means we are
moving in the right direction. Goodwill is at 58%, Tableland is at 63% with E&T coming in at
42%. As a region we are at 56% of the goal being spent.

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski reviewed the second page of the Red/Green Report shows the Title 1
quarterly rates as measured against the 20% and the 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. WIOA
Youth Work Experience being at 55% with E&T making the quarter target. WIOA OSY is at 59%
as a region and meeting the quarter fargets.

REQUEST FOR SUPPORT - SOMERSET COUNTY JOB FAIR
Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski presented a letter of support from Ms. Heather Saly and the Somerset
CareerLink® requesting $1,800 for the Somerset County Job fair being held on April 2, 2025.

Mr. Brock Kull made a motion to approve the request for support of $1.800 for the Somerset
County Job Fair. Mr. Keith Baker seconded the motion. Ms. Sharon Clapper abstained due to being
on the commiitee. The motion passed with unanimous approval.

ANNUAL REPORT AND LOCAL PLAN UPDATES

Ms. Sklodowski stated that the annual report was submitted to the state at the end of January with
copies being included in the packet for the board’s review. The Local Plan is due to the state on
February 21, The state will review the pian and then work with the board to make necessary
changes which then will be presented to the board for approval before the plan is posted for public
comment.

REVIEW OF YOUNG ADULT COUNCIL UPDATE
Mr. Cory Sisto asked Ms. Sharon Clapper to update the board on the Youth Programs. Ms. Clapper
recapped the meeting held on February 4™ which had a presentation from Kristen Goodfellow who



is the career services and recruitment coordinator at South Hills School of Business and
Technology. She had covered a wide amray of courses that are available at the school and how the
school works with students to bring them into the labor force after graduation.

Ms. Clapper shared that Mr. Tim Baranik the Youth Operations Specialist gave a staff report which
included a comparison of program year 23 and program year 24. As a region we have found that the
registrations are down for program year 2024 with Somerset being the exception. Several factors
came into play for the decline Cambria Counties Youth Program is no longer available, staffing
changes, dechne in staff, the rate of pay among other factors. Mr. Baranik developed a strategy
with providers which helped provide new ideas and strategies which will be followed up on.

Ms. Clapper spoke of the update of the Work Readiness form which takes a look at various skills
and 1s something that when providers coordinate industry tours the employers are asked to talk to
the students what the skills they are looking for while hiring. The form is utilized by supervisors
after the first two weeks, and then at the end for a final assessment. The board is always looking for
updates from providers and employers.

Ms. Clapper also shared the BEP Partnership Grant which provides different activities such as
STEM activities, industry tours, career fairs and more. Within this program it gives providers an
opportunity to work with students that might not be able to participate in some of the programs due
to financial guidelines, but while looking at how many students participated in the BEP Grant there
is almost 6000 new and existing students.

REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP UPDATE

Ms. Cory Sisto introduced Ms. Jill Reigh who provided an update on the registered apprenticeship.
Governor Shapiro made a surprise appearance in November of 2023 at the first annual PWDA
Apprenticeship Conference to stress how registered apprenticeships can improve the workforce and
urged to make apprenticeships a priority.

In 2023 there were only 4 active apprenticeships in the region. In 2024 most of the PA CareerLink®
staff attended a half a day training with Mr. Marshall Palmer who is the Apprenticeship Training
Office Regional Representative. Mr, Reigh then presented on the opportunities for employers that
registered apprenticeships represent.

Ms. Reigh provided a refresher of registered apprenticeships and what they require.

Specific occupation that will enhance their workforce.

A sponsor who does administrative work

Employer with journey Workers that can pass their knowledge on to the apprentice.
Qualified Classroom trainer (requires techmical Instruction -R'TT)

Review/Approval by the Apprenticeship Training (ATO) Council

Apprentices eager to learn a skilled trade.

oo Bl b —

The goals for 2024 was to have a regional increase of approximately three registered apprenticeships
in the pipeline, The application process can take up to a year. The percentage of engagement of
current registered apprenticeships from current levels, while encouraging partnership with
CareerLinks® and potential WIOA funds for eligible apprentices.




When the program was started there were seven registered apprenticeship programs in the Southern
Alleghenies which included

Global Valve — Machinist & Quality Control Inspector
KMIL Carpenters — Carpenters

Eastern Elevators -Elevator Constructor
Insulator/Pipefitter Union — Pipefitter

B&B Designed Systems, Inc — Electrician

Sheetz Inc — Software Analyst

JWF Machining — Welder & Electrician

NS RN e

As of February 2025 there have been 8 registered apprenticeship programs added which include

Clover Creek Farms — Dairy Graizer

CLI Transport — CDL

Leonard S. Fiore — Carpenter

Penn State Ag. Dept — Buicher

Mellot Industries — Fitter

The learning Lamp — Child Development Specialist & Early Childhood/Pre-K Teacher
UPMC — Opthalmic Medical Technician & Hoursekeeper

Pitt School of Dentistry — Dental Assistant.

el R R

Ms. Reigh shared her gratitude towards the providers and the registered apprenticeship and is
looking forward to exploring different paths for registered apprenticeships.

Mr. Cory Sisto asked what the process is to become a registered apprenticeship.

Ms. Reigh shared that the business service team talked to employers to make a connection. She also
asked Mr. Wade Baumgardner how many classes are held a year.

Mr. Baumgardner shared that there are 238 apprentices. On an average year there are 3 classes with
roughly 14 in each class. This year they will be holding seven classes with 14 in each class.

ONE STOP OPERATOR UPDATE

Mr. Brad Burger welcomed new board members and wanted to provide background on the One
Stop structure. The providers operate under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
(WIOA). WIOA has required elements that are represented on board, public and private partners
that come together to serve the community. The board provides the operators with funds that are
used exclusively for technical support, training and outreach. The bulk of support comes from the
partners. Anything that is shared cost, each partner pays their own portion and in order to do that the
have to be one physical sites in each of the six counties, five of which are called Comprehensive
Centers, and one is called an affiliate center in Fulton County. There are three site adminis{rators,
which are Ms. Barb Covert, Ms. Gwen Fisher, and Ms. Heather Saly who collaborate well together.
Each dollar that is funded to operate the brick-and-mortar structures is a dollar that cannot be




deployed for services and is to pay for the facility. There is always a transition period and are
anticipating the funding challenges, which is when operators go back and look at the system and
make sure that the residents of the region have accessible entry points into the system. That may be
brick and mortar and has been traditionally brick and mortar, but it doesn’t always have to be. There
are other means to interact with the system, and operators are looking into things such as heat
mapping the walk in traffic and correlating between the different facilities, and what 1s the print
inside the facility, Based on what’s changing in the external environment with the population
change, the use of technology and the anticipated funding cuts, what providers will see over the
next couple of months from the operators will be more updates on how the system is being flexed to
adjust to the changes. Operators are actively engaged in the changes that might arise.

OTHER BUSINESS

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski shared her appreciation for the assistance she received while completing
the Local Plan. She specifically thanks Ms. Tina Swineford for taking time out of her day, coming
to the SAPDC office and assisting with the Local Plan.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

NEXT SAWDB MEETING
The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board is scheduled for May
13, 2025, at 9AM.

ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Brock Kull made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Sharon Clapper seconded the motion. The meeting
was adjourned at 9:50 a.m.




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, March 11, 2025
Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Piatform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

ACTION SUMMARY

Following are the major actions taken by the SAWDB Executive Committee at its regular
meeting held on March 11, 2025, via the Zoom meeting platform.

Approval of Minutes from January 14, 2023
ITA Policy Approval

TABE Assessment Waiver Policy Approval
WIOA Self Aftestation Approval

el S



SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, March 11, 2025

Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom

Members Participating
Cory Sisto

Craig Shield

Jesper Nielsen

Julia Brulia

Wendy Melius

Non-Members
Amy Horwath
Barb Covert
Brad Burger
Gwen Fisher
Dan Hornbake
Debbie Ankney
Judy Lutz
Heather Saly
Linda Straka
Lisa Phillips
Sarah Helman
Steven Howsare
Jill Reigh

Jim Walker
Tim Baranik
Carrie Fisher

Call to Order

Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

IFC Services

OVR

Croyle-Nielsen Therapeutic Associates
Holiday Inn

CCA

Goodwill

E&T

Goodwill

Goodwill

BWDA Oversight Representative
Tableland Services

E&T

PACL Cambria/Somerset

Career Planner for Somerset County
Tableland Services

Goodwill

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAWDB Chair, Mr. Cory Sisto, called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce
Development Board Executive Committee to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was open to the

public and available virtually using Zoom.

Approval of Minutes from January 14, 2025
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion for approval of minutes from January 14, 2025, Executive
Committee meeting. There were no questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

Ms. Julia Brulia entered a motion (o approve the January 14, 2025 SAWDB meeting minutes das

presented. Mr. Craig Shield seconded the inotion. The mofion was carried.




Director’s Report

Red/Green Report

Mr. Jim Walker referred to the Red/Green Report and noted that invoices are due on the 12" of
every month. Quarterly expenditure rates are measured against 80% expenditure requirement.
Some providers have met the quarter target while others are falling a little short. The goals will
be monitored closely. The expenditure rates will show a better picture in April after invoices are
in.

Mr. Walker referred to page 2 of the Red/Green report and stated that it tracks expenditure rates
as measured against the 20% and 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. As with the first
page of the Red/Green Report, some providers are close to meeting the goal, and others have
met their goal. The invoices are due on the 12" and will have a better picture in April.

Request for Support: Cambria County Job Fair

Cambria/Somerset CareerLink offices entered a request for support in the amount of $500
for the upcoming Cambria County Job Fair scheduled on May 6™ at the 1% Summit Arena in
Johnstown.

My, Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to approve the request for support: Cambria County
Job Fair in the amount of $500, the motion was seconded bv Ms. Julia Brulia. The motion
carried.

ITA Policy

Mr. Jim Walker spoke of the background of the ITA Policy which stands for Individual
Training Account. This is the platform that is used to spend Occupation Skills Training
funds for WIOA Title I. The Changes made to the I'TA are:

1. The Test of Adult Education (TABE) is the standardized assessment instrument used to
assess Basic Skills for customers of WIOA services in the Southern Alleghenies region.
ITA candidates must achieve a minimum Reading Level “M” result using the current
version of the Reading TABE Locator and score a minimum of a 577 scale score on the
Mathematical skills test at the level prescribed by the TABE Locator®.

*Individuals seeking CDL training are not required to take the additional TABE
Mathematical skills assessment but are required to take the current version TABE
Locator, scoring at least at the M level in Reading and Math.

2. Individuals with Associate, Baccalaureate or Advanced degrees are exempt from skill
proficiency assessment requirements. Exemptions from TABE and Interest Inventory
assessments for ITA candidates must be approved on a case-by-case basis by staff to the
Southern Alleghenies Workforce Board in accordance with the TABE Assessment
Waiver Policy for the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Area.

3. Dislocated Workers who have not obtained permanent full-time employment equal to
93% of their wage at dislocation or 235% of the Poverty Guidelines




4. Training Caps Increased- If training funds are available, the following limits and
restrictions are established for ITA’s:
Programs less than one (1) year in length up to $5,500%
Programs one (1) year up to two (2) years in length not to exceed $7,000*
*If special training funds are secured these caps may be waived and financial support up
to 100% of the cost of training may be provided.

M. Cory Sisto asked if there were any other questions or discussions concerning the revisions.

M. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to pass the IT4 Policy, the motion was seconded by M.

Craig Shield.

TABE Assessment Waiver policy

Mr. Jim Walker shared the formal policy of the TABE Assessment Waiver Policy which
outlines the administrative procedures that need implemented while implementing the
waiver itself.

My, Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to adopt the formalized TABE Assessment Waiver
Policy, the motion was seconded by Ms. Julia Brulia.

WIOA Self Attestation

Mr. Walker shared the WIOA Self Attestation which indirectly affects the documentation
that is gathered for eligibility determination for any WIOA Title I for individualized carcer
services. This tool is used by the state which the local workforce areas have adopted.

M. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to adopt the State Policy WIQA Self Attestation Policy,
the motion was seconded by Ms. Julia Brulia.

One-Stop Operator Report

Mr. Brad Burger shared the latest funding issue, with which there would be $107M cut from the
WIQA pilot project, but the formula funding would stay intact through September 30", There
would be a $75M rescission in the Dislocated Worker fund. The decision on the funding is
moving and looks like it will go through. It isn’t a traditional clean CR and it is being changed,
and there are cuts proposed in the budget. Mr. Burger said when he was at a conference, he
heard the starting point was 25%. Mr., Burger shared that there is a state wide rapid response for
the federal workers who have been displaced. There has been a larger rapid response than has
been seen in previous years. Mr, Burger also wanted to share about the libraries the Cambria
and Blair looking to tweak the model with expected funding reductions and trying to keep the
facility cost as low as possible and at the same time with any flexibility that keeps dollars




direcied towards customer service is not a bad thing. The first one to be tweaked will be
Cambria where they want to maintain a career resource center in the library but taking the staff
to an off-site building and within the next year Blair will see something similar.

Other Business

Mr. Jim Walker thanked Ms. Jill Reigh for being supportive and everyone else at the meeting for
allowing him to host.

Mr. Cory Sisto thanked Mr, Walker and Ms. Reigh for doing a great job.

Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:36 p.m.

A motion was made by Mr. Jesper Nielsen to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Julia Brulia seconded the

moltion.

The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board Executive
Committee will be held on Tuesday, April 8, 2025, 10:00 a.m.




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, April 8, 2025
Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

ACTION SUMMARY

Following are the major actions taken by the SAWDB Executive Committee at its regular
meeting held on April 8, 2025, via the Zoom meeting platform.

1. Approval of Minutes from March 11, 2025
2. Request to move funds from DW to Adult
3. Revised Policy: TABE Waiver Policy for ITA’S




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

EXECUTIVE COMMITTELE MEETING
Tuesday, April 8, 2025

Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom

Members Participating
Cory Sisto

Craig Shield

Jesper Nielsen

Julia Brulia

Keith Baker

Sharon Clapper

Non-Members
Amy Kimmel
Barb Covert
Brad Burger
Gwen Fisher
Judy Lutz

Lisa Phillips
Rebecca Lowry
Jennifer Sklodowski
Jill Reigh

Jim Walker
Tim Baranik

Call to Order

Meeting Piatform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

IFC Services

OVR

Croyle-Nielsen Therapeutic Associates
Holiday Inn

BWPO

Clapper Industries

Tableland Services
E&T

Goodwill
Goodwill

E&T

Tableland Services
IFS Services
SAP&DC
SAP&DC
SAP&DC
SAP&DC

SAWDB Chair, Mr. Cory Sisto, called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce
Development Board Executive Committee to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was open to the

public and available virtually using Zoom.

Approval of Minutes from March 11, 2025
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion for approval of minutes from March 11, 2025, Executive
Committee meeting. There were no questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

Mr. Craig Shield entered a motion (o approve the March 11, 2025, SAWDB meeting minufes as

presented.Ms. Sharon Clapper seconded the motion. The motion was carried.




Director’s Report

Red/Green Report

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski referred to the Red/Green Report and noted that this report reflects
eight months of expenditures. Invoices are due on the 12" of every month. Quarterly
expenditure rates are measured against 80% expenditure requirement. With the Adult
expenditures, Goodwill is at 80%, Employment and Training is at 73%, and Tableland is a little
behind at 64%. Ms. Sklodowski stated providers are close to meeting their requirements as a
whole for the region at 75%. The Dislocated worker Program, Employment and Training is at
79%, Tableland is at 77%, and Goodwill is at 66%. The region as a whole is moving a bit slow
at 72%. The Youth Program is moving slower than anticipated at 74% for the region. Tableland
is at 83%, Goodwill is at 76% and Employment and Training is at 59%. This continues to be a
concern for the region. It is important to focus on spending for March, April and May. Ms.
Sklodowski does feel that there will be an increase with the upcoming summer programs. Ms.
Sklodowski is requesting that each provider sends a plan to her concerning how they are each
addressing this moving forward. TANT funding is at 63% of the goal spent for the region, and
she believes the goal will be met by June with the upcoming summer program.

Ms. Sklodowski referred to page 2 of the Red/Green report and stated that it tracks expenditure
rates as measured against the 20% and 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. Regarding
Youth Work experience the region is moving along at 72% with WIOA Out of School
Youth at 79%. Ms. Sklodowski suggested the providers push ahead and not take their foot
off of the gas. It is important to monitor this moving forward.

Anticipated Financial Picture PY’25

Ms. Sklodowski referred to the budget and pointed out that the providers are in a strong
financial position. The reserve has a good amount in it and at the full board meeting in May,
she will be asking for the boards approval to move some funds from the Youth Reserve as
well as $150,000 transfer from PY’24 DW funds to Adult. She is currently working on the
first increment budget to bring for review and approval during the May meeting. Ms.
Sklodowski discussed the allocations for PY*24 compared to PY 25,

Adult

PY’24 - $1,343,053.42

PY’25 - $1,036,669.37

Loss - $306,384.05

DW

PY’24 - $1,472,730.83
PY’25-$1,194,611.44
Loss - $278,119.32

Youth

PY’24 - $1,293,914.15
PY’25 - $996,205.44
Loss - $297,708.71




The total reduction equaling $882,212.08. During the preparation of the 1*' increment budget
Ms. Sklodowski will be looking at all financials moving forward to see where cost may have
to be cut.

Mr, Craig Shield suggested sharing success stories to legislators to justify funding.

Ms. Sklodowski shared that she will be sending a letter out to business services to talk about
WIOA authorization and why its so important.

Legislative and Policy Updates

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski spoke of the directors event held on March 11-12 at Penn State
Dubois. The Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry have outline their priorities
which are:

Addressing the workforce shortages
Increasing cross-agency collaboration
Continue with State/Local Agreement
Improving business engagement
Enhancing services in the on-stops.

el e

She also shared that on March 29-April 2 that she attended the National Workforce Board
Forum in Washington DC. Spending the day on Capital Hill advocating for workforce
development policy for the 119" congress. She requested the following:

Fully fund the public workforce system

Reauthorize WIOA

Reject a one-size fits all federal training mandate

Reject new state level set aside in WIOA so workforce boards can meet local
business needs.

e

One-Stop Operator Review

Ms. Sklodowski shared that the review will begin this month and outcome will be reported
at the May meeting.

Revised Policy: TABE Waiver Policy for ITA’s

Mr. Jim Walker shared the revised policy includes modifications to specific components of
the policy to provide clarification and detail. The specific changes as reflected in the revised
policy are:

1. Revised policy removes references to On-The-Job Training throughout to align with
the existing On-The-Job Training Policy — At this time candidates for WIOA funded
OJT are not required to be TABE assessed to access OJT.




2. Page 2~ References Reasonable Accommodation in the context of Criteria for Waiver
of TABE assessment for candidates of ITA’s

3. Page 2 — Policy Component #2 — “Partner organizations involved in the development
of the IEP or ISS have reviewed and endorse the waiver request” — Included in the
revised policy in this section is additional language related to the need for
collaboration and agreement for partners when jointly involved in the development
of the participant service plan (IEP/ISS) for participants of WIOA Title services as it
pertains to the justification for the submission of the TABE waiver request for the
ITA candidate by the WIOA Title I Case Manager. This section also contains
categories of partner agencies and staff that are commonly involved in the joint
development of service plans for WIOA Title I services whose endorsement of the
waiver request is necessary.

4. PAGE 2 — Policy Component # 4 — “Previous Academic Achievement”- Removes
“The participant has attained a postsecondary degree, certificate, or diploma
demonstrating adequate academic proficiency”. To revised language and replaces
this clause with the following: “The participant has attained a post-secondary
associate or baccalaureate degree or certificate of completion of a Registered
Apprenticeship Program.”

5. Page #3 — “process for Requesting a Waiver” — Reiterates in Bulleted points 2 & 3
the need for partner collaboration and endorsement in the case of ITA candidates
whose service plans are jointly developed and shared by partner staff,

Mr. Keith Baker entered a motion to update the Revised Policv: TABE Waiver Policy for
[TA, the motion was seconded by Ms. Sharron Clapper .

Job Fair Outcomes

Ms. Sklodowski reviewed the Employer Satisfaction Survey from the Huntingdon Spring
Job Fair Highlights that was hosted by PA CareerLink® on March 27,2025. The key
findings are that 27 responding employers reported a combined total of 2,559 open positions
they are actively recruiting for. The PA State Civil Service/ Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
accounted for more than 600 openings. Substitute Teacher Service of PA reported over
1,000 open positions. The remaining 25 employers are collectively recruiting for 959
positions across various industries. As a result of the job fair 106 follow-up interviews were
schedules by employers are the event, 7 conditional job offers were made on-site during the
event and employer feedback was overwhelmingly positive with 26 or the 27 respondents
indicating that they plan to participate in the upcoming Fall Job Fair.

The Bedford County Job Fair held on April Second had 59 employers respond, with 1,459
jobs to be filled and 158 job seckers including students. There were 35 students from
Bedford and Everett High Schools with teachers reporting that some students secured
summet jobs during the event, There were 9 veterans served, 184 follow ap calls, 17 job
offers made on the spot, 13 referrals collected for PA CareerLink® services, with 39% of
the jobseekers being employed. Also on the survey portion of “How did you hear about the
event” Facebook was the top outreach used at 28%.




The Somerset County Job Fair there were 63 employers in attendance, with 53 employer
surveys completed. The information from the surveys wete reported that 1,204 job openings
were available which include 600 from the Commonwealth of PA. All employers reported at
least 15 job seekers visited their tables with many exceeding 50 plus, with Perm Machine
giving an absolute count of 251. This also includes 10 on-site interviews, 2 employers
extended offers on the spot, with employers reporting a total of 260 plus follow up
interviews to be made. There were no negative reviews with only 2 reporting the event as
acceptable, all others were reporting satisfactory or outstanding. Only 3 of the employers
surveyed stated that they did not have an interest in working with PA CareerLink® while all
other expressed much interest and will be contacting, There were 364 jobseekers who
attended with 3 local schools in attendance with 7- total high school students, 13 reported
interviews being scheduled, 26 attendees reported being employed, 51 out of 73 reported the
job fair met expectations and was satisfied with the job fair.

Ms. Sklodowski thanked providers for a job well done.
One-Stop Operator Report

Mr. Brad Burger shared the one stop operators are trying to navigate the new funding.
CareerLinks® are funded through a cost allocation structure to where each pariner pays their
portion of cost. As the pool of funding gets smaller it could impact full time equivalent
positions at the CareerLink® therefore shrinks the amount of staff but not the space and the
overhead cost. It will be challenging the next few months to get everything balanced properly.
The operators have been talking about the funding and have some ideas. Some of the
CareerLink offices are leases and there are ramifications in reductions in funding related to the
lease obligations. The planning will take the majority of the next couple of months,

Commonywealth Update

Mr. Keith Baker shared in previous updates where BWPO was working with The Department of
Health and through the use of digital intake that was implemented, one of the reasons for that
was 1o ask participants what barriers to employment that they were facing. One of the categories
were documents that participants needed. BWPO and the Department of Health created an MOU
and Mr. Baker is happy to report that vital records will be able to provide birth certificates for
participants on the spot. BWPO will be piloting it on April 28M at the Lancaster Career Fair.
Some of the conditions are that the participants have to preregister, and Lancaster is organizing
the registration right now. The question was asked about Vital Records coming to CareerLink®
days and they can depending on their schedule and availability

Mr. Baker also shared that there are currently over 90,500 federal employees in Pennsylvania
currently of that 90K there are 2762 in the Southern Alleghenies region, and he doesn’t have the
numbers as to how many federal employees have been laid off. What the rapid response team is
handling it is going through the unemployment database and picking out every federal worker.
On March 12-13" the Rapid Response team held their first virtual rapid response information
meeting for federal workers who lost their jobs. The Rapid Response team will reach out to the
partners if they plan a information meeting in their area. He asked for providers to pass along
contact information to federal employees that they know have been laid off and to collect their
information and send it to him.



Mr. Baker was able to attend the Bedford and Somerset Job Fairs and wasn’t able to attend the
Huntingdon Job Fair but wanted to share that the three job fairs had the best outcome he’s ever
witnessed. He asked Ms. Barb Covert if the recent job fair was the most highly attended ever.

Mr. Covert shared that it was the most highly attended and they had 30% of the surveys returned,
but E&T had 106 follow-up inferviews, 7 on the spot job offers were made that day, 26 of the 27
employers were very satisfied, there were over 1900 job openings and 600 were in the
Commonwealth. It was the largest employer turnout, they only had 1 out of the 62 employers not
show up. The highest number of Veterans attended as well.

Mt. Baker shared that the Bedford County fairgrounds was the perfect facility for a job fair
because even with the large number of attendees there was still room to move around. They also
had empty tables for on-the-spot interviews. The Somerset event was the first event that was held
since Covid, and there was an unbelievable turnout for it. Mr. Baker spoke to the employers and
one of the employers was a campground, which held two on the spot interviews and has a
handful of people starting part time. He shared that the three job fairs have rivaled and exceeded
much larger areas and they all did an outstanding job.

Labor and Industry is holding a workshop forum on April 8™ and 9" at the casino.

Ms. Gwenn Fisher thanked the Workforce Board for their support for their job fairs. She wanted
to invite everyone to attend the Blair County Job fair on Thursday April 17" at the Jaffa Shrine.
There are 95 employers signed up for the event which makes it the largest event ever. In Bedford
there were 17 on the spot job offers and the first time there was students who walked away with
summer employment. These events are the marquee events where they fulfill their mission in a
single day almost. She thanked OVR, Center for Community action and the chambers in funding
the events and their manpower,

Other Business
Ms. Sharon Clapper wanted to thank Mr. Brad Burger for speaking at The Somerset County
Ieadership Education Session on May 19", There were a variety of speakers, and the program is

to familiarize individuals that sign up for the Chambers Leadership program. Mr. Burger did an
excellent job, and it was well received.

Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:54 p.m.

A motion was made by Mr. Keith Baker to adiourn the meeting. Ms. Sharon seconded the mofion.

The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board Executive
Committee will be held on Tuesday, May 13, 2025, 16:00 a.m.




Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board (SAWDB )
Individual Training Account (ITA) Policy

POLICY ITA Policy

NEW | X REVISION
PURPOSE To ensure quality service to customers
DATE APPROVED BY SAWDB February 11, 2020, Revised Sept 2023,

Revised March 11,2025
REVISED MAY 13, 2025

The Individual Training Account (ITA) is a primary funding mechanism through which eligible
individuals can access quality training programs that appear on the Eligible Training Provider
List (ETPL) to obtain employment in High Demand Occupations (HPOs). ITA’s are also used to
support the Related Technical Instruction (Classroom Instruction component) of State Approved
Registered apprenticeships and State Approved Pre-apprenticeship programs in the Southern
Alleghenies Workforce development area. ITA funding is not guaranteed to any participant and
is contingent upon funding availability.

Any adult, dislocated worker or youth being considered for training services funded with WIOA
Title I funds must have completed the process for determining eligibility and suitability. In the
case of WIOA eligible Adult and Dislocated Worker patticipants, training services are available
if it is determined by PA CareerLink® staff after an interview, evaluation or assessment, and
career planning that the individual

e Isunlikely or unable to obtain or retain employment that leads to economic self-
sufficiency or wages comparable to or higher than wages from previous employment
through career services alone;

e Isin need of training services to obtain or retain employment that leads to economic self-
sufficiency or wages comparable to or higher than wages from previous employment,
through career services alone;

e [s underemployed;

e Has the skills and qualifications to successfully participate in the selected program.

Procurement for Training services is through an Individual Training account (ITA), a
training contract or a combination of an ITA and training contract. Adult customers who
had begun attending post-secondary training prior to receiving Basic Career Services will
not be eligible to receive ITA funds. However, if an employed individual had begun post-
secondary education and then had his/her job eliminated, thus becoming a dislocated worker,
they may be considered for ITA funding to complete their education assuming the course of
study and training provider meet the other criteria established in this policy.




Guidelines governing the Individual Training Account System include:

>

>

I'TAs will only be established for training programs that are on the list of Eligible Training
Providers authorized by the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry (L&I).

Customers are required to complete the Career Scope or other assessment consistent with
L&I guidelines as the interest and aptitude assessment instrument. The results must show
alignment with the career field they are pursuing.

The Test of Adult Education (TABE) is the standardized assessment instrument used fo assess
Basic Skills for customers of WIOA services in the Southern Alleghenies region. ITA
candidates must achieve a minimum Reading Level “M” result using the current version of
the Reading TABE Locator and score a minimum of a Scaled Score of 577 on the
Mathematical skills test at the level prescribed by the TABE Locator*.

*Individuals seeking CDL training are required fo take the current version TABE Reading
and Math Locators, scoring at least af the M level in each, the TABE Mathematics
assessment and scoring a minimum Scaled Score of 537 (beginning of 6th grade) and the
Career Scope Interest Inventory assessment.” -

Exemptions from the TABE Assessment for ITA candidates may be granted and are approved
on a case-by-case basis by the Director of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Board and
may be granted under the following conditions include but are not limited to:

o The candidate has an Associate, Baccalaureate or Advanced degree.

o The candidate has a documented disability that significantly impacts the
ability to complete the TABE Assessment®

o Individuals with documented disabilities will be assessed using reasonable
accommodation as outlined in their IEP,504Plan or medical record.

*Examples may include but are not limited to:

1) An adult whose native language is not English, might instead be assessed with the CASAS
Reading Steps or CASAS Listening STEPS to assess their English Reading and Speaking Skills
2) An adult whose disability prevents them from demonstrating critical thinking/problem-solving
at the 8" grade TABE Math level, might instead be assessed with a different basic skills
assessment or a lower Scaled score may be acceptable through consultation with OVR.

>

Participants are required to obtain an acceptance letter of admission into the training program
as part of the ITA funding request.

ITAs will only be established for programs that support occupations that appear on the High
Priority Occupation List for the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Area. If a
chosen training program supports an occupation that appears on the High Priority Occupation
List for another workforce development area and the customer indicates a willingness to
relocate to that area, an ITA could be established.

Customers must be able to complete an approved training program within two (2) years.



» If training funds are available, the maximum award is $7,000.00%
* In the event that special training funds are secured these caps may be waived and
financial support up to 100% of the cost of training may be provided.

» ITA funds must be used for expenses incurred in completing actual program curriculum
coursework. Funds may not be used to cover any prerequisite, repeat, or remedial
coursework.

» Employed customers may be eligible for an ITA under the following conditions:
e Adults whose family income does not exceed 100% of the Lower Living Standard
Income Level.
e Dislocated Workers who have not obtained permanent full-time employment equal to
93% of their wage at dislocation or 235% of the Poverty Guidelines
e In-School, Out of School youth or Older Youth (ages 18-24) who meet the Title I
WIOA eligibility criteria.

» If the cost of the training program selected is greater than $5,500.00, the participant must
indicate how the remaining cost of the training will be funded.

» An approved ITA supplements other funding sources for training. Program operators must
coordinate the customer’s funding arrangements with One-Stop partners and other entities
such as but not limited to state-funded training, and Federal Pell grants. Program operators
must ensure that all potential partner funding sources are included with an ITA application.
Participants may enroll in an ITA funded program while an application for a Pell grant is
pending as long as the operator has made arrangements with the training provider and the
participant regarding allocation of the Pell Grant (tuition only), if it is subsequently
awarded.

» A training program must be job specific and result in a license, certificate, diploma, associate
degree or bachelor’s degree. This includes individuals who previously started a degree
program but did not complete it.

» Complete ITA packages should be submitted to the staff of the Southern Alleghenies
Workforce Development Board (SAWDB) at least two weeks prior to the start of training.
Any deviations to the timeline need to be coordinated directly with the SAWDB staff.

» Title I providers must not accept referrals from one-stop partners for training programs for
adult and dislocated worker customers who have not been registered for WIOA services and
who do not have a formalized Individual Employment Plan.

> If training funds are available, the following limits and restrictions are established for ITA’s:

Programs less than one (1) year in length =$5,500%
Programs one (1) year up to two (2) years in length = $7,000%

*In the event that special training funds are secured these caps may be waived and
financial support up to 100% of the cost of training may be provided.



» Support for on-line training will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Candidates for ITA
training funds in support of On-Line training programs are required to complete the modules
associated with the NorthStar digital literacy “Standards for Essential Computer Skills” and
“Standards for Essential Software Skills” or by completing a series of assigned courses on
the Metrix Learning Management / Skill Up platform that include “Using a Computer” and
its related sections and “Microsoft Office” module within one month and prior to the
completion and submission of the ITA packet.

» Confirmation that the Provider will remain in contact with appropriate PA CareerLink staff
regarding the participant, as they progress through the training program. Regular
communication is essential and a program requirement to monitor the progress of the
participant for the attainment of WIOA performance objectives that includes credential
attainment, employment, and other performance measures.



%669 %PrSS  COZROL S OLSPEE S| EFLOGY S| - $ - 8= $ | onN[zsz'hy S wveEz S vlle S| on[OFE'EE  § 0SLVE S 0888 S| S3A| GPZ0E  § /8/'60L $ BE0'ESL § £52'6RR  § ImOL

Edvnt.kvmmhu.wﬂ m E . . . ! mmm_m mE..q mﬂ..n ! vm...; mv_.‘_. mon.m E Sm.w mn_.Awq mﬁ.ﬁ nmeawww E%_nﬂ
%06'LL %IETI  000'80L  § 048'0S s [ogi'rs 5] 2 - ! ¥s0'kL (899'%) yor's ! 7.8'6 920's £6v's ! ¥26'2 LIS'S io'os ooo'ser  § 2u'183
%BO'SL %009  2E0'€y § voL'biz S [9E9LKE S |- s - ! 628'v2 y06'22 SLE'VE ! ziz'ee L16'8Z 5.0'62 ! 0Ev'4Z LLb'es £98'8L 0BL'82Z5

%ET05

atetelel ottty

RIIAATEX A

—— — v ﬂ. ﬂnn

%5528 %P0  CLNIIST § GESI60% S CEPEINE S - 5 = s - s V9T WEC S SSC WY S 8GHOVE § VGYeyZ $ 9veel § LIVEFC S 6988k § USC¥SZ S Z6CBEC § S9GEHE S WIMTVIOL

%L9Y8 %ELLl9 9T 88§ 6EPSSE m_ﬁ:.mz s~ s - s - l mm>_ 185'v6 S coL68 § 9reel w_ mm>_ o909z, § ge8l8 § 6¢oes m_ mmr_ 55CGL § €8L96 § Z9vi8 § C0SLOLE § (el

%¥S'26  %EO'RL  ¥08'T9C  § 662'SE $ E g 4 . ! val'se oe'sz e ! 19561 SET' LT 99L'sE ! §56'S2 £+z'0e 054 505'82¢  § puejeiqeL

%SP'ES  %OLPS  BIYELZ  § SS5'EZTL wE. - = !Nom.aw g8b've Log'eh ! ¥96'LL 93’5t !mum.m £50'LL oar'sl 860'ciT ETRE -}

%GE'BR  %89°0L 000'00F S §8S'SYL g E C s - ! 18¥'8y 91£'8¢ L6¥'EE ! 664'GE 9£0'62 L1218 E 522'88 98Y'6Y Z5e'er 000'005 $ limpooD
WnoA

%eZEL  %Ov'eS  BYY'66L S bBL'SSE m_ot.nnm l. s - § = i mm_>_ 86L'19 § G56'98 § BEYLL m_ mw>_ BLL08 § 956'L9 § EOLWL m_ mmj £r0'S8 § ZZOEL § GLB'SS § 199'666 S IeioL

%9ZSE  %LTBY  BYSEEL  § LL9'ES s [B00Ekk S |- = = STIA| 28404 ovZ'El 629'Hh S3A| 590'ek Le'zL 05L'sk SIA| LTL'eL 99'ZL 64504 989's8L S puBfRlgeL

%6L'GB  %E989  OOMGiZ  § IvE'vE $ | ¥ES7BL S

951'se eLL'Le Syv'le ooo'ses  §

pocD
#a

%EE'PL  %IS'6S  000'CSy  § ©LL'8CT $|LToee S| - £ = Lip'LE 796'LE TLe'sy S See'ly ¥65'9¢ 169'8E

S3A| 509'ek [1-7AF4 160'02 ! 64£'92 58681 952'02 S3A| 99.L'9L £ ZSB'ET 5.8'892 § au] ‘193
L

%0¥'E8  %ZL'88  LyZ068  § EO0E'0LE w_mm.v.mvh $ S S3A[ L45'8L § 6¥Y¥8  § 5668 § LOBTLLL § IEOL

%LE0L %EL'YS  ¥OLLLL  § BLE'EZE mE. = = ON] L¥6'}} sez'vl oge'zt !mﬁ.: 2L8'TL 9z0'94 ON| #25'Eh 292'61 9EL'vh oeg'viz & puejeiqeL
%0908 %BrYa  /95'88Z S GlE'sol mE. < - S3A| vev'el yo'ze §29'LZ E 2852 gv6'8L £50'0Z SIA] §15'42 £L8'0Z 899'1Z LL1'BBT S o 'L93

¥0S'vy 60g'8¥ 6Z8'55 S3A| €BL'0S SEY'PY 9e0'er S3A| Zes'er ig'sy 054'05 ooo'oes $

¥
>

6/8'v. § 829¥8 § rIE'68 w_ mm>_ 60L'68 § SS¥'9L § 62l'6L

@

0
“
v
'
@

%ITER  WTPLL ooo'osy S BOS'LLE

FURL Wiods Wbl %08 SqelieAy GIA wwng Sunf dx3 ATWaxg Jdy dx3 OEICLYlD Yoitp dx3  qogdxg Uordxy PboieLglo 2ogdx3 RON ax3 PO dx3 ObICL ¥ID  1d9g 0x3 Bny dx3 Anr axg obpng PuUnaopInGig
€050 % I90png

%
150'24L s[ieg'oze 5 zis'eel § o09s'zzz §| (e0Lpund or'EL  § 88999 § 8LpL  §| (moLpund
TEEFF S | HOLSS S LghEE § 9eger S puE@IqeL| 00612 § 9¥0LL S BOEVL § puealqeL
000Z¢ §|029%S & Giles § vedss § 173 1028, § SeBLk S 8i88F 3§ 133
95.G0L §|000COF S OOO€EHh § 00002k § [1MpooD CEEEE § [S9LE S 000OF S [MpooS E
JOEL oK =g ApY SEIEL ok ] P! WEICL 1398VL NO
H_._bﬂn-.m H__.:r_a_z

INIWIHINDIY FANLIANIIXT %08 LSNIVOY AIHNSVYIN SV
SALVY FHNLIANIIXI ATHILAVND HIAAIAO™J | ITLIL PTAd



%1EDB %EL LY 202528 § B8EYGSE € # voL'arL % _ - 3§ - $ E i S3A i 185'76 & 29.6GB § SVTEL w_ S3A * 908z, § G088 § BZOGE S w SIA [ 5525L © 2886 § EO¥L8 § ZOS'LOLE § UINGA WOIM [BIBL
%1198 REFTL BILEOVE S ser'ss 4 E - - EETSR 181 ole'LE 2v2'sT Era 582'12 994'68 E SS6'9Z £re'oE 95L4 S05'9Z% S pueiolqe.L
% LOEL %OL'¥S vZEY0r S §68'6TL  § ﬁ - - E 602 9LV L0S'EL E 0Tk v35° Lk aru'sh E 5968 5044 oar'sl 960'ELZ S 2up ‘193
%P S %RY L 000546 § ses'ayl ¢ E - - E Lev'ey 919'8e L67'EE % $5L'6¢ $E0'6T LT LE E 55E'8% 987’6y f4:ra=d 00005 % |MpoeS
ASO - LA VOIM
JUELES pITEE3 ORI Sl VWERL%0r OqUmAY LK Wwng  sunrdxg RO TyEE wnnl B ey GELaRE ULFORS  Wbrel  SEEONE RGN Pooxy o) EOSERI  BAv oy ANFAXg JoupTE
TEBSTEY;, WOPhE 0% HiE iizss ) RS YR

Vit UF ST 1ZE0CC | § SVPBG mfﬂ_mt l g - S mw oN m_.ﬂ..ﬂ 5 BG6CSZ § 650G m_ ON _Em.ﬁ S 96ceh S OvOBS m_ 53N Tnm.ﬁ T 16/G¢ § GGBEZ  § EOGLDLG 5 WINOL YOI oL
%1569 %06'EL W05 § 5E8'29T WE. - ON | 028y [ 7L Ems_m $EY'E SpL'L E&? 094’5 27's SOE'HCE § puesie,
BEEEGE  %BSOE DEEYS & Z6G'BRL mE. - STA ] 050'8 812y L1er's 7338 jous 1802 366'L TN BLTIH &¥6'6 gs0'eiE  $ ' 1%3
%S6°TE %05°04 00000k B BHOUYY mE. - E 15L'S 985S 806 Emmm vog' 532 S3A | eze's £5ESL $O0'FL o00'00s  § IMPOOD
4x3 HIoM - HLA YOI
pLET [ET WERIWg:  aUuAY QLU WWORS AT O FEEORg TAYANs  pbrl AW axy  qudaRE et e M £ T L AONIRE P[oaxg  PUNRY  WeEWRI SO XET O anpng F OPIRGI]
L L1 T THiB Ho i oL YoM
15530z § 080'Ss§ 5| [eoLpung 15898 § 09E'R G TEOLpung
SEGIE $ sZrgl % pueQeL 28602 § &LPS g puBrNge |
Q0Z'15 & &G59ck  § 193 BSCLL § ¢55F % I E]
0466 $ 00052 S APEOS CGZLE  § cecd  § E
ELAEC %ozl [SELata ST ASE ThRoe] SHUIET FECTINE
FTIAVOIA ORI HIoM| ATNENG {“RIXVOIM EXIVIGHR| AIUSH
THIX O “HIX T

SINIFNIHINDIY JHNLIGNTEIXS YOIM %54 8 %02 LSNIVDY d3dNsvaill sv
SEILYYH ZHMNLANIdX3 ATHILHYND BTN [ FTLLL £TAL



- g1 - s| - s - $i - $
%,86'66 6L°06Z°ZFF'9 $102'685°220°L ¢ | 19262218} $ | 6£886'659'L & | 6V ¥Zg9s6’L $ jejol
%86'8 Z9'Ler'e.s s - $ | G9z/9'86 $ | 06662F0L  $ | L06¥PVEC ¢ SINEESM
%00 00'LSF'Z ${ - $100.L8 $ {00218 ¢ |lo0zle $ SJUBWISSASSY JEIS UYLON
%000 00008 s - $ | 0000} $ | 007001 $ | 00001 $ SIUBLISSESSY @ BSUBDIT SASMMIOM,
%69'¥9 15'886'89) 'V $11G€LL'206 ¢ j000C2Z'LL0L $]009L0%LL L $| 00646621 $ Nanlaq ecines
%YE'S 00'655'80% $ | 00°668'0F $ | o098L'9el & | 00ZEL'SE $ {o0ggl'oel & 51800 BuneladQ yuljssle)
%610 00°000°Z1 st - $ | 00000 $ | 00°000'% $ | 00°000'F $ WNHOSUOD Ydieasay JsisniD Asnpu|
%290 00°'000°0F gl - $ [ 00°000'GL ¢ |00000GL $ | 00°000°0L 3 $20|A8g aAllloddng
%00’} 00'9L9'v9 $| - ¢ | o008L'L $ | 00'68E'EE $ | 00°LFO'VT 3 suonebiiqo 1ro £ZAd
%88 % 00°000°GLE $| - $ | 0o'000'szL ¢ | 00°000'S9 ¢ | ooooo'szl 8 iro
%GG0 00'€¥E6E sl - $ | 00°0Z6'L ¢ | 00¥6L'BL $ | 006228 $ SUCEDHAQ DUIUIBI] £ZAd
%G9'E 00°000°GEZ $ - $ | 00°000°GL % | 0000009 $ | 00°000°0CL $ pufuies |
%e06 S0°L19°L8S SIEYCER $|96LPL08L $|6¥08L8FL S |THiLIE9L $ pIeME JO %01 J8 UORBISIULPY
€301 §O %

61706229 $ 0.655°220°L $|19/€28L8°L $|65896659°L ¢ |6V PZsoce’l $ I19Y1IVAY ONIONNA

00°000'0S 1 s| - ¢ |(coooo'ost) $| - $ | 00000008  $ HI4SNYHL

08'6/8'268'L $118/28'/€2 ¢ [ 8290666y $ | ¥TYI0'99¢ ${L0LiPEBZ % £ZAd WOHL YIAOAHEYD

620LV'668'Y $169LLL'68L S [ €808LTIYL $|SLPIEERT L $ | ZFESOEPE’L $| PZAd SIAINTHOIATIY NEIHLNOS COLVS

ONIANNS TVLOL ANYL HIIHOM HLNOA nav

Q31vo01sId

§202 ‘0¢ aunp Bulpuz Jea ) 8yl Jo4
Arewawng 3abpng
eoly juawdojoraq aotoplop satuaybaly ulaynog




